
  
 

 
 

Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond 
Meeting Notice – March 23, 2023 

 
 

 
WHAT:       The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority will hold its 
  March Board Meeting. 
 
WHEN:          Thursday, March 23, 2023, at 1:00 P.M. 
 
WHERE:     Main Street Station, 1500 East Main Street, 3rd Floor Conference Room 
 
CONTACT:  Carla Childs at (804) 646-7438 or carla.childs@rva.gov  
 
 
 

For more information about The City of Richmond’s Economic Development Authority (EDA),  
Visit:  http://www.rvaeda.org/ 

 

mailto:carla.childs@rva.gov
http://www.rvaeda.org/


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EDA AGENDA 

 



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING MARCH 23, 2023 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

 

 

 

I.  Call to Order 
A. Public Meeting Disclosure 

 
II. Meeting Minutes 

A. Meeting Minutes – February 23, 2023 

III. Public Comment (Maximum of Three Minutes Per Person) 
                                                                          
IV. New Business 

A. Triple A Program Cooperation Agreement 
 

V. Committee Reports 
A. Audit and Finance Committee 

1. ASM February Report 
2. Financial February Report 
 

B.Loan Committee 
1. Church Hill Cleaning Works 

VI. Report of the Officers 
A. Report of the Chairman 
B. Report of the Secretary 

VII. Other Business 

VIII. Adjournment 
 

Upcoming Meetings 

Board Meeting –  April 27, 2023 
Finance Committee Meeting – April 27, 2023 
Marketing Committee Meeting – April 27, 2023 
 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEETING MINUTES 



Economic Development Authority (EDA) of the City of Richmond, Virginia 

February Board Meeting 

Thursday, February 23, 2023 Minutes 

 

Members present: 

Nupa Agarwal, Vice-Chairperson 

Evan Feinman 

Jer’Mykeal McCoy 

Jéron Crooks 

Nathan Hughes  

Neil Millhiser 

 

Others present: 

Bonnie Ashley- City of Richmond, City Attorney’s Office  

Carla Childs –Department of Economic Development  

Jacquelyn Craft - Department of Economic Development 

Katie McConnell - Department of Economic Development 

Leonard Sledge - Department of Economic Development 

Lisa Jones – A. G. Reese & Associates 

Rick Winston - Department of Economic Development 

 

 

Call to Order: 

Ms. Agarwal called the meeting to order at 1:08 pm and Ms. Childs recorded the meeting.  

Public Comment: 

No public comments were received via email, phone, or otherwise by staff per Ms. Childs. Mr. Sledge 

read the public disclaimer.  

Approval of Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 

Ms. Agarwal requested a motion to adopt the minutes of the January 26, 2023, Board Meeting as stated.  

Mr. Hughes moved to accept the minutes. Mr. Crooks seconded the motion.  The Motion passed 

unanimously. 

 

New Business – Mr. Leonard Sledge 

Mr. Sledge asked the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair, in consultation with Legal 

Counsel, to accept the transfer of funds to the EDA for $20,0000 from the Governor’s Agricultural and 

Forestry Industries Development Fund (AFID) Infrastructure Grant Program for facilitating a grant to the 

RVA Street Foodies LLC. Mr. Crooks made the motion.  This was a recommendation from the Audit and 

Finance Meeting. The Motion passed unanimously. 

Mr. Sledge asked the Board to consider a motion to authorize the Board Chair, in consultation with Legal 

Counsel, to execute a contract with RVA Street Foodies, LLC for a $10,000 local match for a $20,000 

grant from the Governor’s Agriculture and Forestry Industries Development Fund (AFID) Infrastructure 

Grant Program. Mr. Hughes made the motion.  This was a recommendation from the Audit and Finance 

Meeting. The Motion passed unanimously. 



Committee Reports: 

 

Audit & Finance Committee – Mr. Nathan Hughes 

Mr. Hughes reported that historically, January is a slow month. There were no events at the Training 

Center for January. More events are scheduled in March and April. Mr. Hughes presented financial 

highlights. Maintenance repairs include building an Automation System computer replacement for the 

HVAC system. This is a capital expense for March.  The Training Center reported a negative net income 

variance of $45,000 but is still on track to meet the budget.  Stone Brewery was ahead of budget by 

$45,000 due to fewer repairs that were budgeted. There was no unusual loan activity.  

 

Mr. Sledge stated that staff will be meeting with the BrownEdwards for a pre-audit meeting. This is a 

proactive measure to prepare for the EDA FY2023 annual audit.  

 

Report of the Officers: 

 

Report of the Secretary – Mr. Leonard Sledge 

Mr. Sledge thanked the Board for submitting their financial disclosure statements on time. Ms. Childs will 

confirm the status of the submissions with the City Clerk’s Office.  

 

Mr. Sledge updated the Board on the Chamber RVA 2023 InterCity Visit. This year the host city will be 

Kansas City, MO.  Mr. McCoy provided highlights from the previous year's visit to Columbus, OH. The 

Board will send one or two members to attend. 

 

Other Business: 

There was a discussion on adjusting the meeting times and days of the Board and Committee meetings.   

The Board also requested a scheduled Board Retreat. Mr. Sledge stated that he would work with staff as 

a follow-up. 

 

Adjournment 

 

The meeting adjourned at 1:36 pm. 

        

Respectfully submitted: 

 

 

 

Secretary to the meeting 

 

Approved: 

 

 

      John Molster, Chair 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ASM REPORT 

 





































 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

EDA FINANCIAL REPORT 

 





















TRIPLE A AGREEMENT 



 
Cooperation Agreement 

Page 1 of 7 
 

COOPERATION AGREEMENT 
 

 THIS COOPERATION AGREEMENT is made this 14 day of ,October by and 
between the CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA, a municipal corporation of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (“City”) and the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA, a political subdivision of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia (the “Authority”). 

  
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

 
A. Section 15.2-953(B) o f  t h e  Code of Virginia authorizes the City to make 

gifts, donations, and appropriations of money to the Authority for the purpose of 
promoting economic development and Section 15.2-4905(13) of the Code of 
Virginia grants the Authority the power to make grants to “any person, 
partnership, association, corporation, business, or governmental entity in 
furtherance of economic development.” 

 
B.  Whereas the City desires to provide the Authority with Grant Funds in the 

amount of $700,000 pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in this 
Contract and as authorized by the federal American Rescue Program Act 
(ARPA). 

 
C.  Whereas the ARPA authorizes expenditures for, among other things, technical 

assistance, loans and grants to assistance small businesses in an effort to promote 
economic development and recovery from the pandemic. 

 
D.   Whereas, the services provided for in this Contract are for the purpose of 

promoting economic development for businesses through grants that respond to 
the negative economic impacts of the pandemic. 

  

 NOW, THEREFORE, intending to be legally bound, the City and the Authority 
agree as follows: 
  
1. Definitions. The following words and terms used in this Cooperation Agreement 
have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise: 
 
1.1 Agreement means this Cooperation Agreement. 
 
1.2 Eligible Activities means those activities identified in section 5.1 of this 
Agreement. 
 
1.3 Funds means $700,000 in City ARPA funds made available for the purpose of 
establishing and administering the Grants. 



 
Cooperation Agreement 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
1.4 Grant or Grants means the funds awarded to a Grant Recipient or Recipients. 
 
1.5 Grant Contract means the contracts by and between the Authority and the 
recipients of grants funded by this Agreement. 
 
1.6 Grant Program means the “Triple A Small Business Program” as outlined in 
Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
1.7 Grant Recipient means an applicant to whom a Grant has been awarded. 
 
1.8 Project Fund means that account or accounting structure established in accordance 
with this Agreement which shall contain any funds from any source related to the Grants. 
 
1.9 Small Business means those that experienced negative economic impacts or 
disproportionate impacts of the pandemic and meet the definition of “small business,” 
specifically:  
 
A. Have no more than 500 employees, or if applicable, the size standard in number of 
employees established by the Administrator of the Small Business Administration for the 
industry in which the business concern or organization operates, and   
B. Are a small business concern as defined in section 3 of the Small Business Act 
(which includes, among other requirements, that the business is independently owned and 
operated and is not dominant in its field of operation) a business as having no more than 
500 employees, is independently owned and operated, and is not dominant in its field of 
operation. 
 
2. Duration.  This Agreement will be in force and effect beginning on the date 
written first above and shall expire when all obligations have been performed and all 
rights have been fully exercised by both the City and the Authority. 
  
3. Funding. The City agrees to transfer the Funds to the Authority as soon as 
practicable after full execution of this Agreement. 
 
4. City Undertakings.  
 
The City’s Office of Minority Business Development (“OMBD”) shall collect, review and 
approve the Grant Program applications and facilitate the overall operation of the Program, 
to include: 
 
A.  Providing staff; 
 
B.   Undertaking assessment of the business for eligibility in compliance with ARPA; 
 



Cooperation Agreement 
Page 3 of 7 

C. Undertaking the “Assess” and “Address” phases of the Grant Program as set forth
in Exhibit A;

D. Making Grant awards based upon the “Activate” phase of the Grant Program as set
forth in Exhibit A, including the determination of Eligible Activities to be funded;

E. Providing necessary resources and mentorship to the Grant Recipients;

F. Maintaining all documentation and appropriate accounting records relating to the
Grants.

5. Activities to be Funded

5.1. Eligible Activities.  Activities funded by the Grant Program must comply with The 
U.S. Department of Treasury Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds Final 
Rule, Federal Register Vol. 87, No. 18 (January 27, 2022)(to be codified at 31 CFR Part 
35) pp. 4376 – 4379, attached hereto as Exhibit B.

5.2 Grant Contracts.  The Authority shall enter into Grant Contracts with the Grant 
Recipients. Such Grant Contracts shall require that the Grant Recipients expend the Grant 
by December 30, 2024 as required by the ARPA. 

5.3 ARPA.  The Authority shall obligate the Grant Recipients to abide by the ARPA 
and to repay a Grant to the Authority in the event the Grant Recipient’s use of the Grant is 
found to be non-compliant with the ARPA. Should any such Grant be returned to the 
Authority, the Authority shall return the Grant to the City.  

5.4 Repayment to the City. Should the Authority fail to expend any Funds by 
December 30, 2024, the Authority shall return any such unexpended Funds to the City. 

6. City Staff Support. The City, through its Office of Minority Business
Development, in coordination with other City departments, offices, or agencies as deemed
appropriate by the Director of the Office of Minority Business Development, shall provide
staffing and administrative support to the Authority in administering the Grant Program.

7. Project Fund.   The Authority shall establish an account or accounting structure to
ensure that all funds transferred by the City to the Authority for the Grant Program are used
only to satisfy the obligations contained in this Agreement and remain separate from any
other funds of the Authority.

8. Accounting and Audit. The Authority shall prepare financial reports and
statements of all financial activity relating to the Grant Program in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, or such other or additional method mutually
agreeable to the City and the Authority.  The Authority may use its accountant to prepare
the reports and statements if it chooses, and the Authority may include these reports and



 
Cooperation Agreement 

Page 4 of 7 
 

statements in its regular reports and statements on other activities of the Authority. 
Pursuant to Section 2-187 of the Code of the City of Richmond, the Author i ty  
shall, as a condition of receiving monies from the City, be subject to periodic audits of 
its finances and expenditures of such City monies by the City Auditor on demand 
and without notice.  
  
9. Limitations on Authority’s Obligations. 
 
9.1 Authority Bond.  The Authority shall not be required to furnish the City with a 
fidelity bond covering all officers or employees of the Authority capable of authorizing 
disbursements of funds or handling funds received from the City or any other party or 
disbursed by the Authority to any other party pursuant to this Cooperation Agreement. 
 
9.2 Authority Liability.  It is the intent of the parties not to impose upon the Authority 
any responsibility other than what may be required to consummate the transactions 
contemplated by and perform the obligations specified in this Cooperation Agreement.  
Accordingly, the Authority does not assume any responsibility or liability whatsoever 
except as specifically stated herein.  Should any liability accrue to the Authority which is 
not specifically addressed in this Cooperation Agreement, the Authority shall not be 
required to expend funds the Authority derives from sources other than those provided for 
by this Cooperation Agreement to discharge such liability.  If a lawsuit involving the 
subject matter of this Cooperation Agreement is filed or expected to be filed against the 
Authority, the Authority shall immediately notify the City Attorney and Chief 
Administrative Officer. 
 
9.3 Availability of Funds.  The Authority’s obligation to undertake and perform the 
activities required of the Authority herein is specifically conditioned on the availability of 
funds in the Project Fund for the Authority to perform the Authority’s obligations 
hereunder.  The Authority shall not be required to expend funds the Authority derives from 
sources other than those provided for by or described in this Cooperation Agreement for 
the performance of the Authority’s obligations under this Cooperation Agreement.  The 
Authority’s obligation to undertake the activities herein is specifically conditioned upon 
the City providing funding on a timely basis. 
 
10. General Terms and Conditions. 
 
10.1 Captions.  All section titles or captions in this Agreement are for convenience of 
reference only.  They should not be deemed to be part of this Agreement or to in any way 
define, limit, extend, or describe the scope or intent of any provisions of this Agreement. 
 
10.2 Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed by the City and the Authority in 
separate counterparts, each of which when so executed and delivered shall be an original, 
but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same Agreement. This 
Agreement, agreements ancillary to this agreement, and related documents entered into in 
connection with this agreement are signed when a party’s signature is delivered by 



facsimile, email, or other electronic medium. These signatures must be treated in 
all respects as having the same force and effect as original signatures. 

10.3 EDA Administrative Fee.  The City agrees to pay the Authority $25,000 from 
the Funds in the Project Fund to administer the Grant Contracts, prepare financial reports 
and statements, and to complete any required audits.

10.4 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding between the 
City and the Authority and supersedes any prior understandings and written or 
oral agreements between them respecting this subject matter.  There are no 
representations, agreements, arrangements, or understandings, oral or written, between 
the City and the Authority relating to the subject matter of this Agreement that are not 
fully expressed in this Agreement. 

10.5 Governing Law and Forum Choice.  All issues and questions concerning 
the construction, enforcement, interpretation and validity of this Agreement, or the rights 
and obligations of the City and the Authority in connection with this Agreement, 
shall be governed by, and construed and interpreted in accordance with, the 
laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia, without giving effect to any choice of law or 
conflict of laws rules or provisions, whether of the Commonwealth of Virginia or any 
other jurisdiction, that would cause the application of the laws of any jurisdiction 
other than those of the Commonwealth of Virginia.  Any and all disputes, claims and 
causes of action arising out of or in connection with this Agreement, or any 
performances made hereunder, shall be brought, and any judicial proceeding shall take 
place, only in the Circuit Court of the City of Richmond, Virginia.  Each party shall be 
responsible for its own attorneys’ fees in the event this Agreement is subject to 
litigation. 

10.6 Modifications.  This Agreement may be amended, modified and supplemented 
only by the written consent of both the City and the Authority preceded by all 
formalities required as prerequisites to the signature by each party of this Agreement. 

10.7 No Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the 
benefit of the successors and permitted assigns of the parties hereto; provided, 
however, that in no event may this Agreement or any of the rights, benefits, duties or 
obligations of the parties hereto be assigned, transferred or otherwise disposed of without 
the prior written consent of the other, which consent neither party shall be obligated to 
give. 

10.8 No Individual Liability.  No director, officer, employee or agent of the City or the 
Authority shall be personally liable to another party hereto or any successor in interest in 
the event of any default or breach under this Agreement or on any obligation incurred 
under the terms of this Agreement. 

10.9 No Third-Party Beneficiaries.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, the City and the Authority hereby agree that: (i) no individual or entity 
shall be considered, deemed or otherwise recognized to be a third-party beneficiary 
of this Agreement; (ii) the provisions of this Agreement are not intended to be for the 
benefit of any individual or entity other than the City or the Authority; (iii) no 
individual or entity shall obtain any right to make any claim against the City or the 
Authority under the 

Cooperation Agreement 
Page 5 of 7 



provisions of this Agreement; and (iv) no provision of this Agreement shall be construed 
or interpreted to confer third-party beneficiary status on any individual or entity 

10.10 Notices.  All notices, offers, consents, or other communications required 
or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 
considered as properly given or made if delivered personally, by messenger, by 
recognized overnight courier service or by registered or certified U. S. mail with return 
receipt requested, and addressed to the address of the intended recipient at the following 
addresses: 

A. To Authority:

Leonard L. Sledge 
Executive Director 
Economic Development Authority of the City of Richmond, Virginia 
1500 East Main Street, Suite 400 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

With a copy to 

General Counsel to the Economic Development Authority 
900 East Broad Street, Suite 400 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

B. To the City:

Chief Administrative Officer 
900 East Broad Street, Suite 201 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

With a copy to 

City Attorney 
900 East Broad Street, Suite 400 
Richmond, Virginia 23219 

Either party may change any of its address information given above by giving notice in 
writing stating its new address to the other party. 

10.10 Public Records.  The City and the Authority acknowledge and agree that this 
Agreement and any other records furnished, prepared by or in the possession of the City 
or the Authority may be subject to the retention and disposition requirements of the 
Virginia Public Records Act and the public disclosure requirements of the Virginia 
Freedom of Information Act. 

Cooperation Agreement 
Page 6 of 7 



Cooperation Agreement 
Page 7 of 7 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Cooperation Agreement as of the 
day and year first written above. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
AUTHORITY OF THE 
CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA, 
a political subdivision of the  

CITY OF RICHMOND, VIRGINIA, a 
municipal  corporation of the 
Commonwealth of Virginia  

Commonwealth of Virginia 

By: __________________________   By: _____________________ 
Executive Director J. E. Lincoln Saunders 

Chief Administrative Officer 
__________________________ 
Chairman 

Approved as to Form: 

____________________________ 
Deputy City Attorney 

Approved as to Form: 

_____________________________ 
Assistant City Attorney 


